
Date Published:14 September 2021     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 15 September 2021 at 1.30 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting on 9 June 2021.

Chair

4  FUTURE OF THE HIGH STREET (Pages 11 - 34)

To receive a presentation from Nigel Jobson, Chair of the LEP Retail and
the High Street Sector Group and Chief Commercial Officer for Maybe and
Andy Sanders, Community and Economic Development Manager at
Tewkesbury Borough Council.

Nigel Jobson

Andy Sanders

5  GFIRST LEP ITEM (Pages 35 - 44)

To consider the attached report on the Local Growth Fund Programme 
Overview and Project Review of the Gloucester Transport Hub.

Neil Hopwood

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update on the GEGJC meeting held earlier the same
day from the Chair.

Cllr Tony Dale



    

Please refer to the published forward plan of the GEGJC to suggest any
items you may want to consider at a future meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee.

Scrutiny members are invited to attend the GEGJC meeting in an observer
capacity. Please refer to the following link to view the agenda and
supporting documents for the GEGJC meeting:

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MI
d=10055&Ver=4

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY 
PLANNING (Pages 45 - 66)

Colin Chick

8  WORK PLAN (Pages 67 - 68)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings.

Chair

INFORMATION ITEMS

9  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT (Pages 69 - 76)

To note an update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director of  
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure on Economic Growth issues in the 
County.

Colin Chick

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

20 October 2021 (Joint meeting with Environment Scrutiny Members)
17 November 2021

Membership –  Cllr Rebecca Halifax, Cllr Dominic Morris, Cllr Robert Vines, Cllr Roger Whyborn, 
Cllr Matt Babbage (Chair), Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Alastair Chambers, Cllr Chloe Turner and 
Cllr Paul Baker (Vice-Chair) Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr John Murphy and Cllr Gina 
Blomefield

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506 / e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10055&Ver=4
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10055&Ver=4
mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(d) 

2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 
the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 9 June 2021 virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Rebecca Halifax
Cllr Dominic Morris
Cllr Roger Whyborn
Cllr Matt Babbage (Chair)
Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey

Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Paul Baker

Officers in attendance: Mike Dawson, David Owen, Pete Carr, Gillian Parkinson, 
Simon Excell, Colin Chick and Angela Presdee

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

The Chair opened the meeting by welcoming members to the new council term and 
doing introductions around the virtual room.

Apologies were received from Cllr Robert Vines and Officer Steve Mawson.

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Members were advised that as the legislation allowing local authorities to hold 
meetings virtually came to an end in May, any meetings now held remotely would 
not be formal.

This meeting was an introductory session to the Committee and therefore any 
formal business could not be carried out. Members were advised to give thought to 
their nominations for vice-chair ready for the next formal meeting of the Committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Members noted the attached report on the terms of reference for both the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint and Scrutiny Committees, and their 
relationship to each other.

5. THE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ECONOMIC GROWTH AND 
RECOVERY IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Presentation 1 – GFirst LEP

5.1 The first introduction was received from David Owen, Chief Executive of the 
GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership and the Committee noted the following:

 The attached report provided links to the core documents for members to 
review and give an overall flavour of the work involved with an LEP.

 The overarching mission for Gloucestershire was to sustainably grow the 
economy.

 GFirst had been ranked as a high performing LEP by the Government via 
its yearly Ofsted inspection.

 It had been challenged a few years ago on the quality of scrutiny it was 
undergoing by this Committee, fortunately this had been turned around 
and managed through close working with officers and members.

 GFirst were really keen therefore to continue in that vein and maintain 
their high performance at a national level.

 The LEP was now into its fifth year of growth deal funding and details of 
the projects supported by this could be found on the website.

 There were national guidelines on partnership structures which GFirst 
broadly followed. There were up to 15 members of the Board at any 
onetime, which compromised of representatives from education, 
voluntary and community sector, political from GCC and districts and the 
private sector.

 Supporting the main Board was also an Investment Panel which 
undertook detailed investigation of any funding allocations.

 There were also ten sector groups that represented the main business 
sector groups in Gloucestershire who provided a genuine, strong sector 
voice into the LEP’s work.

 Any money spent by the LEP Board was not held by GFirst but instead by 
the accountable body which was GCC. Both organisations had an 
excellent, open and sensible working relationship, one which had been 
recognised as such by Government. 

 The long-term guiding strategy for the LEP’s work was now the Local 
Industrial Strategy (LIS) (which was previously the Strategic Economic 
Plan).

 In developing the LIS, the Board surveyed 6000 young people about 
what they wanted from a future in Gloucestershire.

 The Strategy had four main focus’:
o Net zero – both how the county could play a lead role in 

addressing climate change but also the opportunities change 
offered for economic growth;

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

o Flexibility – this was a pre-Covid desire, recognising that in order 
to retain and attract young people, the county had to have a 
flexible approach to employment and employability;

o Innovation – there was a long history of innovation in 
Gloucestershire and the LEP wanted to continue that. The County 
currently had a higher than national average of businesses 
involved in innovation. 

o Sector strengths: Cyber Technology – industry growth for the 
whole county, not just the development at GCHQ but digital skills 
centres etc. and Agritech development and growth locally and 
internationally.

 The LEP had a four stage approach to its Covid response:
o Setting up a remote response services as quickly as possible.
o Gathering intelligence from businesses in Gloucestershire on the 

impacts of Covid and lockdown, which was then fed into Govt. to 
make sure support was coming down the line nationally or being 
provided locally.

o Informing businesses of what support was available by working 
closely with district partners who were responsible for handing out 
financial schemes from Govt. plus highlighting information on what 
was available centrally.

o The final stage was now implementing the LEPs recovery plan and 
looking forward to how to build resilience into Gloucestershire’s 
economy.

 The LEP was currently going through a review commissioned by Govt. at 
national level. The purpose of which was to explore how to strengthen the 
business voice in local decision making and using the LEPs to do this.

 There were also a number of Board member changes ongoing at the 
moment.

5.2 It was questioned what the outcomes of the youth survey were and how 
these were reflected in the LIS. The full report was available online 
(https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/gfirst-lep-youth-survey-
2019v2.pdf) but the main concerns from young people were the climate 
emergency, flexibility in employment, public transport availability plus their 
enthusiasm for the natural environment and how much they valued having a 
mix of urban and rural.

5.3 Following on from this, it was questioned whether the LEP considered the 
large investment brought to Gloucestershire to date addressed those primary 
concerns. It was advised that now the LEP focus had moved to the priorities 
within the LIS, it had considered some previous investments made inline with 
the SEP aspirations probably would not be made now, primarily due to the 
increased focus on environmental issues.

Page 3

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/gfirst-lep-youth-survey-2019v2.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/gfirst-lep-youth-survey-2019v2.pdf


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

5.4 In relation to Covid, it was queried how the LEP saw the shift from office to 
home working playing out in the longer term and whether it could have an 
affect on future investments. 

5.5 Members heard that a recent news story suggested with two years, working 
patterns would return to five days a week in the office. This was not 
something the LEP recognised at this stage. A lot of research nationally and 
internationally was showing an increasing number of employees wanted a 
more flexible approach and a mix of working patterns. In addition the data 
was also showing that businesses welcomed that approach, and hadn’t seen 
productivity suffer through working from home.

5.6 In terms of what this shift meant for future development, it was explained that 
projects such as Golden Valley were providing a supply of good quality office 
space which the county has been lacking for decades before Covid. On 
transport, there was likely to be a shift but it wasn’t entirely clear how yet. 
GCC would continue its focus to improve the public transport offer in 
Gloucestershire.

5.7 What we did know however was that there were some tough decisions 
ahead on transport and how the county achieved the modal shift needed to 
meet its climate change aspirations. There was a need to discourage people 
from returning to their pre-Covid travel habits and pursue a much more 
environmentally friendly/physically active way of travelling.

5.8 It was added that the county was currently trialling a new rural demand 
response rural transport scheme in the Cotswolds and Forest of Dean. It was 
noted that 26% of residents in FOD and 46% in the Cotswolds did not live 
within walking distance of a bus stop, as well as many large employers being 
out of reach from public transport. This type of ‘Uber’ style bus service could 
be vital going towards solving rural transport issues.

5.9 It was questioned how the LEP were encouraging businesses to be part of a 
greener economy. It was advised that the Growth Hubs were a key tool here. 
They were working with existing employers, offering free impartial advice on 
becoming net zero, but also helping businesses identify the opportunities the 
green agenda could bring.

5.10 In addition the skills agenda was supporting education providers to 
understand what green jobs were and how to translate those into useful 
training for young people.

5.11 A member recognised the valuable training resource the LEP had provided 
to young people on STEM career roles. It was advised that currently this was 
an unfunded area of activity for the LEP, it was unknown at the moment 
where future funding would come from to continue the programme after 
Covid but the LEP were very aware of the positive feedback from young 
people of how valuable it had been. The LEP would continue to look into 
where they could access funding to continue.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

5.12 It was added that a lot of the above discussions revolved around the 
contents of the Local Transport Plan which would be shared with members 
after the meeting for their review and consider whether a future presentation 
would be useful.

ACTION: DSU

Presentation 2 – Gloucestershire County Council

5.13 The second introduction was received from Colin Chick, Executive Director 
of Economy Environment and Infrastructure at GCC, and the Committee 
noted the following:

 The GEGJC had recently considered a report on what the county’s role 
and approach was to economic recovery during and after the Pandemic 
(report included in this meeting’s papers).

 The report identified three main themes that GCC were directly 
responsible for, these were summarised in section 2.2.

 It had then been used to produce an economic dashboard for members 
of both GEGJC and GEGSC to be able to identify economic weaknesses 
coming out of the pandemic.

 Katherine Martin, Data & Analysis Manager, was introduced to give an 
overview of the attached dashboard.

 It included the headline figures impacted by Covid and then drilled down 
on each in more detail. It did not include all indicators for the economy 
but those that were timely and gave the best understanding of Covid 
impacts.

 It was hoped receiving this data as a standing item at each Committee 
meeting would give members the ability to make informed decisions 
going forward. Members were encouraged to suggest anything else that 
could be included.

5.14 In reference to the dashboard, there were a few requests for additional 
measures to be added on green business growth and high streets. These 
would be taken away for the team to explore but it was advised these were 
both difficult to measure and the Council did not have unlimited resource to 
do so.

5.15 On the Fastershire project, it was questioned whether the Council was purely 
supporting business broadband upgrade or whether it was also looking into 
blackspot residential areas as well.

5.16 It was advised that the team were looking at both. In summary, if there was 
not an existing commercial proposition available, the Council could intervene 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

and contact broadband providers to see if they would be willing to provide 
one, if not, that was the stage the Council could step in to provide support.

5.17 There was a Fastershire website where anyone could check against a 
postcode to see what was available in that area and any planned upgrades. 
It was highlighted however that the council could only intervene on 
infrastructure; it could not help residents or businesses with poor quality 
services, which could only be addressed by the providers.

Presentation 3 – Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) 
(to include the role of the six district councils)

5.18 The third introduction was received from Mike Dawson, Chair of the GEGJC 
Senior Officer Group (SOG), and the Committee noted the following:

 Some issues had already been covered through the other presentations 
so this section would include comments on the local planning authorities, 
economic development generally plus Covid recovery, the Joint 
Committee how it worked and where it came from and finally the officer 
support for this area provided via SOG.

 The six district councils in Gloucestershire, despite some level of 
competition at times, acknowledged they were much stronger when they 
work together, and as part of an effective partnership on most issues.

 In addition to the LIS and LTP as important documents for the Committee 
to be aware of, the third were the districts local plans. District councils 
were the authorities that planned for growth in the county, which was a 
massive responsibility and incredibly costly. Cotswold, Stroud and the 
FOD had their own plans, whilst Tewkesbury, Gloucester and 
Cheltenham worked together on a Joint Core Strategy.

 It was noted the existing adopted plans which ran from 2011-2031 
planned to deliver 61,500 homes across the county plus 340 hectares of 
employment land (which equated to 52,000 jobs in that period).

 All authorities were currently working on the next iteration of these plans 
to work through to 2041, in their draft stage these plans were looking to 
deliver another 30,000 new homes and 140 hectares (equating to another 
18,000 jobs) of employment land.

 These figures showed the sheer importance of local planning and the 
responsibility carried by the districts.

 In light of these figures, comments were echoed on the real need for 
integrated, long term transport plans to support a more effective planning 
process.

 Districts had been somewhat hampered by central Govt. who had always 
been very keen on planning periods. Many large scale deliveries such as 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

the Golden Valley project and Tewkesbury Garden Town were long-term 
projects that spanned outside of these.

 All seven authorities in Gloucestershire were therefore currently working 
towards a longer-term broad agreement on the future for development in 
the county beyond 2050, with an aim to better integrate all future 
development with transport networks etc. A Statement of Common 
Ground was currently being discussed.

 They all saw economic growth as a priority, but each of their approaches 
were different. This was because the communities across the county 
varied a lot, so the focus changed depending on that districts 
need/aspiration. In addition there was variation of economic growth 
function within different council structures and staffing.

 Covid recovery has been a huge piece of work for all and the partnership 
working had been amazing. 

 District councils had been responsible for paying out Govt. grant aid to 
businesses which estimated to date at around £200m to 40,000 
businesses, the logistics of which had been terrific.

 There was an update to GEGJC this morning formal partners on Covid 
recovery efforts, a summary document of this discussion would be 
circulated to members shortly.

ACTION: Mike Dawson

 Moving on to the GEGJC, it had been created in 2015 when Govt. 
requested authorities to set up a partnership body which was capable of 
making binding decisions around the economy and growth.

 This Committee was set up at the same time to provide the joint scrutiny 
arrangements.

 The functions of GEGJC were a round the exchange of information, 
partnership and coordination and decisions on funding (specifically 
around the Strategic Economic Development Fund which derived from 
the business rates pool).

 Quite often when there were competing bids for Govt. funding, the 
GEGJC was helpfully used as a forum to discuss.

 Both Committees were supported by the SOG, which was made up of 
representatives from the GFirst LEP, GCC and district councils at a 
senior level. These tended to be officers involved in economic growth 
and/or planning.

 The work of SOG was to support the agendas and work of both 
Committees.

6. THE SKILLS AGENDA FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills at the GFirst LEP, gave a brief 
overview of the skills agenda and members noted the following points:

 The paper provided worked through how Gloucestershire operated in the 
skills space, the specific challenges that the skills landscape had and 
proposals that were currently being taken forward (by all partners) to try and 
reduce some of those complexities and offer a more streamlined landscape 
locally.

 This agenda had been taken forward by a group called the Gloucestershire 
Skills Advisory Panel which aimed at bringing together all key partners in this 
area from education, providers, councils etc.

 Provisions very much operated depending on the need. Some of the work for 
example was focused on strategic planning, whereas others might be 
delivering in person training around school career strategies.

 There were also sub-groups of the Panel that were constantly working on a 
number of direct aspects such as Covid economic recovery.

 The diagram at page 42 of the agenda pack represented the very 
complicated landscape that was the skills agenda. 

 One of the main local challenges was that 89% of all businesses in the 
county were classed as micro-businesses meaning they only had up to 9 
employees. Many were therefore extremely stretched in terms of time and 
resources to be able to support this agenda. 

 The Panel had recently created the Skills Portal (www.skillsportalglos.com) 
which aimed at starting to simplify the landscape by bringing together all the 
support an individual might need to one place.

 In addition to this, an Employment and Skills Hub was in the process of 
being created which would again aim to provide a ‘one front door approach’ 
for people who were looking for that support.

7. WORK PLAN 

Members noted the future items in the attached work plan and suggested the 
following to be added:

 Local Transport Plan, with a focus on carbon neutral and the affordability of 
public transport options

 Youth unemployment
 Green jobs and sustainable growth
 What might be the future impacts of Covid on the economy, particularly with 

a move towards more home working
 Statement of Common Ground

Page 8

http://www.skillsportalglos.com/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

It was confirmed the Chair would share a draft work plan proposal with members to 
consider following the meeting.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 16:00.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Connecting places 
and people.

W
W

W
.M

AYBETECH
.CO

M
 ©

 M
AYBE* SO

LU
TIO

N
S LTD

 2021

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 12



Who are my customers?
What do they want now? 
How you reach them?
How do you connect with them?
Are you serving them well?

What every local business needs to know ...

P
age 13



All social data is linked to 
a location and sector as its 
collected from Google 
Maps.  Card linking tracks 
the businesses results 
online and offline. 

© Maybe* Tech | www.maybetech.com 

Maybe* 
gathers data 
for 3.9m+ 
businessesP

age 14

https://fsymbols.com/copyright/
http://www.maybetech.ccom


P
age 15



Measure the impact on any digital intervention

P
age 16



P
age 17



Connect 

P
age 18



P
age 19



90% UK shoppers
15m subscribed to Prime
250,000+ marketplace sellers
50% revenue growth 2020

Recommendation engine 
delivers 35% of all sales

P
age 20



71% of people use social media.

On average they spend over 3 hrs 
per day on social media. COVID has 
increased this by 50%.

Only 28% of local businesses 
across the UK are active on social 
media on a daily basis. 

P
age 21



P
age 22



 Empower local businesses to connect 
with local customers.

P
age 23



Maybe* bridges the chasm between offline and 
online experiences without any additional tech.

www.maybetech.com 

P
age 24

http://www.maybetech.com


Tewkesbury 
High Street Heritage Action Zone

Body text

P
age 25



What is a High Street Heritage 
Action Zone (HSHAZ) ?

• An opportunity to boost economic growth and 
revitalise the High St, using the historic 
environment as a catalyst

• Investing in a programme of works to improve 
the physical appearance

• Enhance the cultural, community and business 
environment

• Encourage and engage local residents to return 
to the high street, attract increased visitor flow 
around town

• £2million investment, £1million from Historic 
England

• Funded programme until 2024

P
age 26



What we aim to do:

1. Increase footfall

2. Improve pedestrian environment

3. Conservation and regeneration of Healings Mill

4. Attract new investment – shopfronts

5. Increase housing space – upper floors

6. Increase understanding of local heritage and skills

7. Business investment

8. Promote Tewkesbury High Street as visitor destination and 
community hub

9. Increase community involvement in local heritage

P
age 27



What the HSHAZ incorporates:

1. Appointment of Programme
Manager

2. Shopfront / upper floor scheme

3. Healings Mill

4. Public Realm

5. Traditional Skills

P
age 28



Shopfront & Upper Floor Scheme

P
age 29



Healings Mill

P
age 30



Public Realm

P
age 31



Promotion of 
Traditional Skills & Materials

P
age 32



Cultural Consortium

P
age 33



What difference will it make?

Attractive 
civic space

Barriers to 
investment 

removed

An 
improved  

destination

Increased 
footfall

Reduction 
in vacant 

units

Appreciation 
of local 
heritage

Improved 
environment

Employment 
opportunities

A thriving town 
centre Events and 

festivals

Focal point 
for the 

community

Invigorating 
the local 
economy

Vibrant, 
inclusive and 
collaborative 

place to work, 
live & visit

A High St not just 
focused on retail

Sense of belonging and 
pride

P
age 34



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

 

Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee  
 
Meeting date :- Wed 15th Sept 2021 
 
Paper -  Local Growth Fund Programme Overview & Project Review Gloucester Transport Hub 

Provided by :- N.Hopwood, GFirst LEP 

Overview 

The original Local Growth Programme awarded Gloucestershire a total grant sum of £101.7m in 
three phases starting in 2014 , with a second phase ‘top up’ in 2015 and a final third phase ‘Growth 
Deal 3’ in January 2017. 

The initial 2 phases of the growth deal and top-up came with expectation that we would achieve 
6000 jobs, 400 homes and £220m of private/public sector capital leverage. 

With the third phase, which included the Cheltenham Cyber Park (now known as the Golden Valley 
Development) an additional 1855 homes, 8280 jobs and £65m of leverage were committed to, giving 
totals of 2255 homes, 14280 jobs and £285m of leverage expected by government in return for the 
investment.  

A full summary of the projects invested in is shown below in table 2 

 (NB a sum of £450k was re-allocated to the new Getting Building Fund programme in 2020 as a 
result of the withdrawal of the GCC St Barnabas Roundabout scheme) 

Progress to date (to August 2021) has seen the programme deliver the following headline outputs :- 

• 390 homes,  
• 2227 jobs 
• £205m in leverage 

 
On completion of all of the schemes funded, we now expect to achieve final totals of 3115 homes, in 
excess of 16,000 jobs and c£450m of leverage (based on only the first phase of £50m allocated to 
the Golden Valley scheme). 
 
These outputs will be achieved over the next 5 years or so as the schemes that have been funded 
progress to full construction and completion.     

In addition to the ‘headline’ outputs detailed above the LGF investment has already delivered nearly 
25,000m2 of new or significantly improved education or skills floorspace and facilitated the 
development of 21 Ha (c50 acres) of new employment land, with the Golden Valley scheme and its 
45 Ha soon to be added to the total on completion of the West Cheltenham Transport Improvement 
Scheme. 

The investment was split as follows :- 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

• Business Support (including the Growth Hub Network)  - £18.1m 
• Transport & enabling infrastructure    - £60.75m 
• Skills & Education Facilities    - £12.7m  
• Housing (un-locking sites)    - £8.7m 
• Innovation       - £1m 

 
Economic Performance 
Gloucestershire has achieved employment growth rates consistent with UK and South West regional 
performance over the last 10 yrs (see fig 1 below) with slightly better than average growth in the 
period 2013 – 2016.  This may have been partly as a result of the introduction of the Growth Hub 
into Gloucestershire and the improved business support that became available and some of the 
early LGF investments (even before they were complete potentially as they created confidence for 
business to invest/recruit) but it is difficult to attribute directly. The fact we have kept pace with 
(and at times improved upon) the UK and regional rates is very positive for Gloucestershire.   
 
2020 has seen a substantial dip (as across the UK) due to the impact of CV19, but Gloucs is 
recovering quickly.  
  
Fig 1. Employment Rate/Jobs Growth 

 

The chart below uses the same data but just shows the absolute numbers. Over the 10 year period, 
the total number of jobs in Gloucs grew from 281,000 to a peak of 312,000 (an increase of 31,000) in 
early 2020 until the impact of Covid hit. On figure 2 you can see the increase in the rate of growth 
from 2013 to 2016 more clearly. 

 

50.0

55.0

60.0

65.0

70.0

75.0

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

100.0

Ap
r 2

00
9-

M
ar

 2
01

0
O

ct
 2

00
9-

Se
p 

20
10

Ap
r 2

01
0-

M
ar

 2
01

1
O

ct
 2

01
0-

Se
p 

20
11

Ap
r 2

01
1-

M
ar

 2
01

2
O

ct
 2

01
1-

Se
p 

20
12

Ap
r 2

01
2-

M
ar

 2
01

3
O

ct
 2

01
2-

Se
p 

20
13

Ap
r 2

01
3-

M
ar

 2
01

4
O

ct
 2

01
3-

Se
p 

20
14

Ap
r 2

01
4-

M
ar

 2
01

5
O

ct
 2

01
4-

Se
p 

20
15

Ap
r 2

01
5-

M
ar

 2
01

6
O

ct
 2

01
5-

Se
p 

20
16

Ap
r 2

01
6-

M
ar

 2
01

7
O

ct
 2

01
6-

Se
p 

20
17

Ap
r 2

01
7-

M
ar

 2
01

8
O

ct
 2

01
7-

Se
p 

20
18

Ap
r 2

01
8-

M
ar

 2
01

9
O

ct
 2

01
8-

Se
p 

20
19

Ap
r 2

01
9-

M
ar

 2
02

0
O

ct
 2

01
9-

Se
p 

20
20

%

Employment Rate 16-64 yrs

Glos

UK

South West

Page 36



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

Fig 2. Total jobs Growth  

 

Leverage  

Leverage is a key measure of the success of the programme. It is a measure of the additional capital 
investment that is made, both by public and private sector investors 

Table 1 – investment leverage for LGF Programme and other LEP administered programmes 

Name of Capital 
Programme 

Capital Funding 
(£) 

Leverage/Additional 
Investment/Match (£) Total (£) 

Growing Places Fund 
(GIIF)* £8,400,000 £121,000,000 £129,400,000 

Local Growth Fund £101,715,581 £451,300,000 £553,015,581 
Getting Building Fund £11,300,000 £5,000,000 £16,300,000 
Total Capital  £121,415,581 £577,300,000 £698,715,581 
Revenue programmes       
ERDF scheme £36,000,000 £36,000,000 £72,000,000 
Growth Hub  £1,200,000 £0 £1,200,000 
Total Revenue £37,200,000 £36,000,000 £73,200,000 

 
To date the LGF programme has leveraged over £450m of additional investment and this figure will 
rise to closer to £1bn once the Golden Valley scheme is fully developed. The £23.6m of LGF funding 
that has been allocated to the A40 WCTIS scheme has been critical in securing the success of the 
Golden Valley scheme and without it the scheme may never have happened.  
 
Productivity 
One of the key challenges that was identified back in 2014 when the SEP was initially drafted was to 
improve Gloucestershire’s productivity. GVA is the government’s preferred measure for productivity. 
The most recent LEP level figures are only up to 2019, but they show that although we are still just 
below the UK average (which is heavily distorted by London & Thames Valley outputs) we are 

250,000

260,000

270,000

280,000

290,000

300,000

310,000

320,000

Ap
r 2

00
9-

M
ar

 2
01

0
O

ct
 2

00
9-

Se
p 

20
10

Ap
r 2

01
0-

M
ar

 2
01

1
O

ct
 2

01
0-

Se
p 

20
11

Ap
r 2

01
1-

M
ar

 2
01

2
O

ct
 2

01
1-

Se
p 

20
12

Ap
r 2

01
2-

M
ar

 2
01

3
O

ct
 2

01
2-

Se
p 

20
13

Ap
r 2

01
3-

M
ar

 2
01

4
O

ct
 2

01
3-

Se
p 

20
14

Ap
r 2

01
4-

M
ar

 2
01

5
O

ct
 2

01
4-

Se
p 

20
15

Ap
r 2

01
5-

M
ar

 2
01

6
O

ct
 2

01
5-

Se
p 

20
16

Ap
r 2

01
6-

M
ar

 2
01

7
O

ct
 2

01
6-

Se
p 

20
17

Ap
r 2

01
7-

M
ar

 2
01

8
O

ct
 2

01
7-

Se
p 

20
18

Ap
r 2

01
8-

M
ar

 2
01

9
O

ct
 2

01
8-

Se
p 

20
19

Ap
r 2

01
9-

M
ar

 2
02

0
O

ct
 2

01
9-

Se
p 

20
20

Jobs Growth (FTE)

Total Jobs

Page 37



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

‘punching above our weight’ in relation to many similar LEP areas. We have also moved one place on 
the chart from 15th to 14th over that period.   

Available skills, innovation and agglomeration (the close proximity of businesses, education facilities 
and available labour) are key drivers of economic productivity and the Golden Valley scheme and the 
Forum development in Gloucester, (both of which have been facilitated by LGF funding) should have 
a significant positive impact on GVA in the coming years. This is particularly true where we attract 
higher value business activity to Gloucestershire, ie Cyber, Digital Tech and Creative Industries. 

Fig 3 Productivity in GVA per hour 

 

Fig 4. Gloucestershire performance over time 

 

Page 38



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

 

Summary 

The LGF programme has significantly improved Gloucestershire in terms of economic 
performance, but perhaps more importantly has created capacity and facilities to support 
long term sustainable growth in respect of robust infrastructure, (e.g. Berkely Bridge 
replacement, Elmbridge Court , A40 WCTIS scheme and A419 corridor improvements) , skills 
and education delivery (c25,000 m2 of new/improved space) and business support through 
the Growth Hub network.  

The Gloucestershire Growth Hub network and associated physical Growth Hubs is regarded 
as a benchmark for business support/growth hub services within the UK and is a major 
factor in the high rate of business start-ups and survival rates for Gloucs. The recent opening 
of the Forest of Dean Growth Hub at Mitcheldean will hopefully be a key driver of business 
and employment growth in the Forest of Dean in line with our objective of inclusive growth 
across the county. 

The investment in skills capacity and facilities (e.g. the GREEN skills centre and C11 Cyber 
centre at Berkeley, Gloucestershire College) will have a long term legacy of improved skills 
and employability for the young people of Gloucestershire and will in turn provide a talent 
pipeline for business to support innovation and growth. This capacity is a key factor for 
businesses when deciding to locate in Gloucestershire or not. 

And our investment in local transport infrastructure, notably the A40 WCTIS scheme and the 
Gloucester Transport Hub have facilitated the nationally significant investment schemes of 
the Golden Valley Development (of international significance) and the Forum Digital in 
Gloucester.  

The Golden Valley scheme has been described by Factory (the innovation partner with HBD 
who will develop the scheme) co-founder Jeremy Bamberg as a ‘once-in-a-lifetime project – 
it’s unprecedented. By embracing tech, nature and innovation we’re working to transform 
the area into Europe’s most intelligent Garden District – creating an ideal alternative to 
chaotic city life,” 

  

N.Hopwood 
Projects and Infrastructure Manager 
6/9/21 
   

 

Page 39



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

Table 2 - Growth Deal Investment Outputs (actuals & future forecasts) 

 

P
age 40



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

 

Gloucester Transport Hub – project review 

The Gloucester Transport Hub was a legacy project from the Gloucestershire Local Transport 
Board, subsequently awarded £6.4m of LGF funds. The total project costs were c £10.3m with the 
balance funded by Gloucester City Council (coming in slightly under the forecast budget). The 
transport hub has been hugely important to Gloucester as a catalyst for additional investment. It 
has not only created an iconic, modern transport  hub to vastly improve the user experience for 
travellers, but critically has created a significant development site in the city with adjacent 
transport links that is now being developed as the Forum with a total investment of c£105m 
allocated. It was also a major factor in the decision by REEF Estates to purchase and invest in the 
Kings Walk shopping centre. 

This project is an excellent example of public sector funding ‘pump priming’ a wider 
redevelopment where there is unlikely to be a viable case for the private sector. This investment 
and the subsequent Forum scheme (now under construction) will have a transformational impact 
on Gloucester, substantially ‘re-positioning’ Gloucester as a potential commercial location and 
investment opportunity.   

Capital costs 

 

 

The investment in the transport has been the catalyst for a further c£145m of capital investment 
and will also deliver c100 homes (flats), Gloucester’s first 4* hotel and potentially 1500-2000 jobs 
in a city centre location, in more than 100,000 sq ft of state of the art, highly flexible ‘A’ grade 
office accommodation. 

 
 
  

Page 41



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

 
The site under construction 

 

Aerial View of the site under construction 

 

 

Page 42



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

The proposed masterplan for the Forum development 

 

 

 

Steelwork under construction 

 

Page 43



 

GFirst LEP CIC, Oxstalls Campus, Longlevens, Gloucester, GL2 9HW 

 

The finished Transport Hub 

 

 

The Forum as planned and bus station 

 

Page 44



COVID19 and Economic Intelligence

August 2021

Data and Analysis Team

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



The Economy – impact of COVID-19

Claimant Count Job postings

Furlough 31 July 2021

12,600
Employments 

furloughed

5.0% 
of total 

employments

36,644
Job postings 

in Aug 2021

30.1% 
Up on Feb 

2020

Self Employment Income 

Support Scheme 4, 15th Aug 2021

6,200
Claims

18.0% 
of eligible

14,060
People claiming 

unemployment 

related benefits, 

July 21

3.6% 
of  16-64 

year olds,

July 21

Mobility

Visits to retail 

and recreation 

locations up 

0.1%
on baseline as at 

02/09/2021

P
age 46



The Economy – impact of COVID-19

NEET’S

320
16-18 year 

olds July 21

72,886
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 

Feb 21

19.0% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Total benefits

Universal Credit

44,537
People claiming 

Universal Credit, 

July 21

11.6% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Apprenticeships

3,010
Apprenticeship 

starts 

Q3, 2020/21

Kickstart Gateway

96
Starts

210
advertised vacancies

P
age 47



Claimant Count - Unemployment

14,060
People claiming 

unemployment 

related benefits, 

July 21

3.6% 
of  16-64 year olds, 

July 21

Notes: 
Includes people claiming Jobseeker's 
Allowance plus those who claim Universal 
Credit and are searching for work.

The government's response to COVID-19 
meant that an increasing number of people 
became eligible for unemployment-related 
benefit support, although still employed. 

P
age 48



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

12,600
Employments 

Furloughed as 

at 31/07/21

5% of employments or 

0.5 in 10 as at 31/07/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 16th August

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Extensions to the scheme in Nov and May saw some 
differences in eligibility. 

P
age 49



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 16th August
Figures are based on where an individual lives
Due to small numbers some sectors namely agriculture and public sector are no longer captured in the data

P
age 50



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 

Based on all claims received up to the 16th August

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Age has been calculated as at 1st May

P
age 51



Self Employment Income Support Scheme

6,200
Claims made 

to Wave 5 up 

to 15/08/21

18 of eligible cohort or 

1.8 in 10 as at 15/08/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 15th August

First  scheme closed  13/07/20, covered  80%  of  average 
trading profits for 3 months

Second scheme  opened  17/08/20 covered 70%  of 
average trading profits for 3 months.

Third scheme opened  30/11/20 covered 80% of average 
trading profits, for  3 months.

Fourth scheme opened 22/04/21 some individuals who 
could claim previously unable to do so

Fifth scheme opened  29/07/2021. Two levels of grant 
based on the reduction in turnover experienced

P
age 52



Unique Active Job Postings

36,644
Unique active job 

postings, Aug 21

Notes: 
Job postings are collected from various  
online sources , it does not capture postings 
that are not advertised online, which might 
result in undercounting for some  
occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather 
than newly listed postings. 

A posting may be active for several months 
so may be counted in multiple months

A job postings does not necessarily result in 
a job and some jobs will be created without 
a job postings

P
age 53



Mobility data

Notes: 
Google collects location data shared by users of Android smartphones, and compares the visits to the 
median values on the same day of the week in the five weeks from 3 Jan 2020.

Locations measured include
• Retail & recreation - restaurants, cafés, shopping centres, theme parks, museums, libraries & cinemas
• Grocery & pharmacy - supermarkets, food warehouses, markets, specialty food shops and pharmacies
• Transit stations - public transport hubs, such as underground, bus and train stations.
• Parks - places like national parks, public beaches, marinas, dog parks, plazas and public gardens. 
• Workplaces - places of work. 

Visits to retail 

and recreation 

locations up 

0.1%
on baseline as at 

02/09/2021

Visits to 

workplaces down

37%
on baseline as at 

02/09/2021

P
age 54



Benefits - Working Age Benefit Claimants

72,886
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 

Feb 21
19% of 16-64 year olds 

or 1.9 in 10, Feb 21

Notes: 
This shows the number of individuals 
claiming a DWP benefit in total (i.e. only 
counting each individual claimant once 
regardless of how many different types of 
benefits they claim)

P
age 55



Universal Credit

44,537
People claiming 

Universal Credit, July 21 11.6% of 16-64 year olds 

or 1.16 in 10, July 21

Notes: 

Includes those who are searching for work and 
those who aren’t. 

• Searching for work = not working/ low earnings
• Working with requirements = could earn more
• No work requirements = Not expected to work 

due to health or caring responsibility
• Planning for work = Expected to work in the 

future. Lone parent / carer of child aged 1
• Preparing for work = Expected to  prepare for  

work even with limited capability at present 

P
age 56



NEET’s – Not in Education Employment or 

Training

320 
16-18 year olds

31st July 21

2.33% 
of cohort 31st

July 21
Notes: 
The NEET group includes young people actively seeking education, employment or 
training as well as those young people who are either not yet ready or who are unable to 
access these opportunities because of their personal circumstances. The figures include 
young people in both these categories.

These figures are not adjusted meaning those people aged 16-18 whose outcomes are 
not known to Gloucestershire Youth Support Team are not taken into account

P
age 57



Apprenticeships

Notes: 

Data is for academic 
year rather calendar 
year. 

The data includes all 
funded and unfunded 
learners.

Starts are a count of the 
number of starts at any 
point in the years, 
Learners starting more 
than one apprenticeship 
will appear more than 
once.

7,680
Apprenticeship 

participation 

Q3, 2020/21

3,010
Apprenticeship 

starts 

Q3, 2020/21

P
age 58



Kickstart
Notes: 

Employers of all 
sizes can apply for  
kickstart funding 
which covers  100% 
of the  wage of the 
participant) for 25 
hours per week for 
a total of 6 months

A Kickstart gateway 
helps an employer 
get a Kickstart 
Scheme grant. 
They may also offer 
employability 
support to the 
young person on 
the scheme. 
Gloucestershire 
County Council is a 
kickstart gateway

The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to create new jobs for 16 

to 24 year olds on Universal Credit who are at risk of long term 

unemployment.

96 
Through 

GCC 

gateway 

14 
Employed

by GCC

Starts 
1st September 21

Vacancies 
1st September 21

210advertised

41live

Through 

GCC gateway 

31advertised

25live

With 

GCC

P
age 59



Wider context

P
age 60



Population (Mid 2020) 

640,650
Estimated 

population of 

Gloucestershire

60.3% aged16-64 accounting 

for 386,043 people

7.3% aged18-24 accounting 

for 46,563 people

Notes: 

Population projections are trend-based, which means they are 
based on observed levels mainly over the previous five years. 
They show what the population will be if recent trends 
continue and do not take into account policy changes.

P
age 61



Economic Activity (Jan- Dec 2020)

82.3% aged16-64 are 

economically active

79.0% aged16-64 are 

employed

17.7% aged16-64 are 

economically inactive

Notes: 

This information comes from a  
survey. In principle, many random 
samples could be drawn and each 
would give different results,. The 
error bars indicate the level of 
confidence for each value. 

The data covers a  12 month 
period rather than a snapshot . 
The latest data covers 3 months 
pre pandemic.

Economically active refers to 
those in employment or looking 
for work.

Employment captures those 
employed and those self 
employed

Economically inactive refers to 
those  who aren’t working or 
actively seeking a job, this could 
be because they are retired, 
looking after a home, unable to 
work for ill health etc. 

P
age 62



Business births and deaths (2019)

Business birth rate of 

9.96%

Business death rate of 

9.93%

61.1% of businesses 

survived for 3 years

Notes: 

An enterprise is essentially a 
business. It is generally 
located at the main  site or 
the head office. 

A business birth is based on 
new business registrations. 
The birth rate is calculated 
using the number of births as 
a proportion of the active 
businesses.

Businesses that have ceased 
to trade are referred to as 
business deaths. The death 
rate is calculated using the 
number of deaths as a 
proportion of the active 
businesses.

A business has survived if, 
having been a birth in year t 
or having survived to year t, it 
is active in terms of 
employment and/or turnover 
in any part of year t+1.

P
age 63



GVA and productivity (2019)

GVA of £18.3 billion GVA per head £28,642
GVA per hour worked 

£33.60

Notes: 

Gross Value Added (GVA) is used to measure the economic value of the goods and services produced in an area.
GVA per head relates economic value to the resident population and can be a useful way of comparing regions of different sizes.
GVA per hour worked divides GVA by the total hours worked by the workforce in the area and is often referred to as productivity.
#Data is subject to revisions 

P
age 64



Sectors – Employment (2019)
Top 3 sectors:

Health: 40,000 in 

employment or 12.9%

Manufacturing: 36,000 

in employment or 11.6%

Retail: 31,000 in 

employment or 10.0%

Notes:

Information is taken from a business 
survey, meaning it captures where 
people work rather than where they live. 
This means people who work in 
Gloucestershire but live outside of the 
county will be included but those who 
live in Gloucestershire but work 
elsewhere will be excluded. 

Figures are based on employment, 
employment includes employees plus the 
number of working owners who receive 
drawings or a share of the profits.

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2021-22

16 September 2021 20 October 2021
Joint session with Environment Scrutiny

17 November 2021

Future of the High Streets Local Transport Plan Modern Methods of Construction –
Manufacturers

Gloucestershire Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Planning

Economic impacts of Climate Change – 
to include green jobs

GFirst LEP Item
Programme Overview, impacts to date

Gloucester Transport Hub

GFirst LEP Item
GREEN Skills Centre (Berkeley site)

Getting Building Fund Programme Overview

GFirst LEP Item
GIIF Programme

Education and Skills Programme

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Covid impact on employment and businesses in 
the County

Currently being 
tracked through 
dashboard

3 Impact of potential future lockdowns or 
pandemics on the economy (WFH 
impacts)

2 Statement of Common Ground 4 Youth unemployment 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 
Scrutiny Committee Report 

 
August 2021 

 
This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.   
 
1.0 Decisions 

 
1.1      Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due: 

 A435 Bishops Cleeve to Cheltenham Capacity Improvements – Contract Procurement 
Between 12 Jan 2021 and 31 Aug 2021 

 Gloucestershire County Council’s partnership agreement with Gloucester City Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council in relation to the Joint 
Core Strategy Between 3 Aug 2020 and 30 Sep 2021 

 A417 Missing Link Development Consent Order (DCO) process Between 1 Sep 2021 and 
15 Sep 2021 

 Network Rail Bristol to Birmingham Corridor Strategic Study 22 Sept 2021 by Cabinet 

 Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground - Strategic Planning 10 Nov 2021 by 
Cabinet 

 

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan: 
 Blakeney West - Construction Procurement  

 Highways Major Projects Framework  

 Bus Service Improvement Plan  

 Transport DPS Update on Procurement and Contract Awards  

 Library Stock Procurement  

 Parking ICT Contracts  

 
2.0 Highways  
 
2.1 Highways Contracts 

 Term maintenance (Ringway) – Third year of contract underway.  Some focus now required 

on progressing collaborative working relationship.  Performance on cyclical maintenance 

and defect repair remains on target, but there continue to be high numbers of defects being 

found through inspections or reported by public – continue to experience 4000-5000 defects 

per month (incl. predicted August).  At this time of year it would normally be expected to see 

2000-2500 defects per month.  This is primarily recovery of the road network following the 

prolonged wet and sub-zero period between December and March which has caused 

accelerated deterioration of the fragile parts of the network which have not yet been 

addressed with long term solutions such as resurfacing.  Patching and jetpatcher resource 

have been mobilised to help address repairs but implementation has been delayed as a 

result of covid isolations impacting resource levels.  

 Professional services (Atkins) – Third year of contract underway.   

 Structural maintenance (Tarmac) – Last year of current contract.  Continued good 

performance and final year of £150m investment commenced.  Procurement of next 

surfacing contract to be considered over next 6 months in readiness for April 2022. 

 Street lighting (M Group) –Performance on key indicators remains satisfactory.   

 Highway Skills Academy – Current focus is on the formation of a development/career path 

for those staff which are progressing through their apprenticeships in order that GCC 

retains the investment in time, funds and skills.  First Level 4 (HNC equivalent) Apprentice 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37008&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=41396&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=41106&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40377&Opt=0


 

 

has been appointed and now progressing opportunities for the same Level 4 course for 

existing members of the team.  First cohort of 12 no. Level 4 apprentices start their training 

over the summer with a second cohort planned to follow. 

 Awards – submissions made for CIHT Active Travel (London Road), CIHT Structures (A38 

Canal Bridges) and ICE Structures (A38 Canal Bridges) awards.  A38 Canal Bridges 

shortlisted for the ICE award. 

 
2.2 Highways Delivery 

 Depots/property – development of strategic plan for highways depots included in 21/22 

Service Plan in order to ensure facilities are fit for purpose. 

 Ash die back – continued programme in 21/22 including planting programme to ensure that 

two trees are planted for each one felled with ash die back disease.  Discussions are 

underway with external organisations such as National Trust and others to identify larger 

woodland planting schemes off the public highway.  

 

2.3 Major Projects 
 

J10 
 Non-statutory public consultation results now published.  Preferred Route Announcement 

took place on 16th June 2021 along with associated communications and publication via 

GCC website. 

 Land agents appointed to progress land acquisition and negotiations in partnership with 

GCC Property.   

 Claims to date total just over £10m including ‘historic claim’ claw back.  

 
A435 Capacity Improvements 

 Preparing to go out to tender on capacity improvements on A435 between Cheltenham and 

Bishops Cleeve.  Funding/need associated with local housing developments. 

 

A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse) 
 Works substantially complete. 

Ashchurch Bridge over Rail (Delivery for Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
 Planning permission for the bridge has been granted. Detailed design continues (Atkins). 

 Works continue with Tewkesbury Borough Council and Network Rail to understand the 

complexities of the legal agreements required for the construction phase. 

 

GSWB / Llanthony Road 
 Planning permission granted April 2019; 

 Public Inquiry decision announced in early April by the DfT for the CPO process – this is 

subject to a 6 week Judicial Review Period and a Notice of Intent Period which extends until 

Autumn 2021. 

 Advance preparatory works have commenced and signage is in place for information. 

 Planning application in with GCC for change of use (part of City Business Centre to become 

car park for displaced parking) 

 Bat Survey completed in May 2021, which highlighted no licencing requirements 

 The Llanthony Priory Access works have been completed in April 2021, signage has been 

used to promote the completion of this phase. 

Page 70



 

 

 Arrangements are being made to prepare tender documents for the City Business Centre 

demolition contract. 

 

West Cheltenham / Cyber £22M 
 Work started on site for Phases 1 and 2 in June 2020 and works are currently on 

programme to be completed by Summer 2021. 

 The Phase 3 and 4 Design and Build contract started in January 2021 and is due to be 

completed in early Spring 2022. 

 Highways England’s safety critical works at Staverton Bridge and M5 Junction 11 are 

underway with Arle Court forming part of the M5J11 diversion route, whilst this has resulted 

in an increase in stakeholder contact there has been no impact on the Phase 1 & 2 works 

programme, largely due to reduced traffic volumes during covid restrictions. 

 
3.0 Community & Infrastructure  
 
3.1 DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund  

 Tranche 2: (B4063 Chelt-Glos cycle route): Following criticism last summer of (historic) 

plans for this route further design work has been done by the council’s consultants, Atkins. 

The amended plans are more compliant with recent government guidance on designing for 

cycling (LTN 1/20) and were well received in a public consultation in February and March. 

To make the route as attractive as possible we have invited a critical friend panel to review 

the design. This work is underway. 

 A £231k revenue bid has been submitted to the DfT’s Local Authority Capability Fund for a 

programme of active travel activities in 2021/22. This will support the development of an 

ambitious and high-quality local cycling and walking infrastructure plan (LCWIP) compliant 

with LTN 1/20, work on a pipeline of schemes and engagement with communities including 

employers and schools. We are waiting for an announcement from the DfT. 

3.2 ITU Public Transport and School Transport 
 As part of its “Bus Back Better” strategy to increase the proportion of trips made on public 

transport the government has provided a Coronavirus Bus Service Support Grant (CBSSG) 

scheme for bus operators whose incomes have been hit hard by travel restrictions and 

social distancing rules. The DfT has informed us that this CBSSG fund will end at the end of 

August and will be replaced by a £226.5m Recovery Funding package. We are awaiting 

detail on exactly what this new fund means for Gloucestershire, all public transport 

operators are aware of the imminent changes. Work on the Bus Service Improvement Plan 

also continues at pace. 

 September Service Changes – Stagecoach have registered a series of changes to public 

services mainly in and around the Stroud and Dursley area. They are also going to host a 

series of public events in the next two weeks to inform the public of these changes, a 

member of the ITU public transport team will also attend to understand the information 

being delivered and the public reaction. 

 As per recent guidelines and the relaxation of capacity restrictions, schools returning in 

September will be provided with their normal pre-Covid level of transport. The additional 

funding from the DfE that paid for the extra capacity has also ended. We will continue to 

strongly advise the wearing of face coverings on board by both drivers and pupils. 

 
3.3 Sustainability 

 We are focusing work on development and implementation of measures in the Climate 

Change Action Plan. These include the Tree Strategy, funding bids, transitioning from fossil 

Page 71



 

 

fuels to an electric fleet and rolling out 1000 EV charge points. The team will be expanding 

this autumn following success in recruiting to two posts: a new Climate Change and Air 

Quality officer post and a shared post with Waste which will concentrate on engagement 

and encouraging sustainable behaviours. 

 

3.4 Highways Development Management 
 The HDM Improvement Plan is being implemented with vertical teams delivering a personal 

geographic service to the LPA’s. On the policy front the new Planning Policy Framework 

has been published with a much stronger emphasis on delivery of street trees to help tackle 

climate change. This will necessitate a review of the Manual for Gloucestershire Streets 

and commuted sums for maintenance. 

 

 

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure 
 
4.1 B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester 

 The original HE scheme, in order to fulfil funding criteria, needed to be completed by March 

2020. This, however, was subsequently extended to construction starting in 2021, as part of 

the RIS2 process. GCC officers continue to engage with HE’s Route Manager to attempt to 

ensure everything is ‘joined up’.  

 GCC has decided to take over the detailed design of this project, with the design fully 

underway with the East part of the route designed and consulted upon in Spring 2021, an 

independent audit has now been completed by a leading industry expert to ensure we 

provide the best possible facility we can within the constraints.  The audit findings have led 

to extensive enhancement of the provision, which have been heavily endorsed by Sustrans 

to the extent that they are due to become a major funding provider for the scheme,  

 Works are expected to start in late 2021, delivering the east part of the route first. 

 This scheme will have the key advantage of directly linking the project to the emerging 

£22M West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) providing a continuous 

link between Gloucester and Cheltenham rail station once complete and include the 

recently successfully delivered Emergency Active Travel Scheme on London Road in 

Gloucester. The GFirst LEP Board, in December 2020, agreed that any future underspend 

on the £22M WCTIS would be ringfenced to the B4063 cycle scheme. Prior to this, in 

November 2020, £864k was secured from an EATF Tranche 2 bid from the Department for 

Transport (DfT), which will part fund a section of the works.  We have submitted a DfT 

Levelling Up fund to deliver the scheme in its entirety.   

 

4.2 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch) 
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme was submitted to the DfT 

in January 2020; 

 Positive Government announcement in March 2020, stating that the scheme should 

progress to the next stage; 

 This is to progress to the Outline Business Case – the cost of which is likely to be £2M-£3M 

– part of the funding came from the approved £4M GCC funding for ‘business case 

development’ in 2020/21; 

 The progression of the scheme was considered and approved by GCC Cabinet on 24th 

March 2021;  

 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and Tewkesbury 

BC due to the links to the emerging ‘garden town’; 

Page 72



 

 

 Ongoing discussions with HE to secure approval of options for Junction 9; 

 Detailed HE feedback has been received and is currently being analysed by officers and 

Atkins.  

 

4.3 Digital connectivity 

 Cabinet considered and approved the latest, revised Fastershire Broadband Strategy 2019-

2022 in December 2019; 

 This is now being implemented, with a view to securing solutions for ‘the final 3%’.  

 
4.4 A417 Missing Link 

 Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) made March 2019; 

 Further public consultation took place in Autumn 2019; 

 A supportive officer-level response to this consultation (a joint response from CDC, TBC 

and GCC) was sent on 8th November 2019; 

 Positive announcement in March 2020 stating that the scheme has secured funding and 

should progress to DCO; 

 Revised proposals were subject to a further public consultation, which started on 12th 

October 2020. A detailed GCC officer response was sent, meeting the external deadline of 

12th November 2020; 

 The DCO planning application has now been submitted in June 2021 and is currently being 

considered by the Planning Inspectorate.  

 

4.5 Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
 The LTP was adopted at Full Council on 17th March 2021. 

4.6  Chepstow Transport Improvements 
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options; 

 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress to Full Business Cases; 

 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K (2020/21) 

towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study; 

 A possible further GCC financial contribution for 2021/22 is currently being considered. 

 

4.7 Cinderford  
 FoDDC yet to secure planning permission and funding for proposed extension of phase one 

of the road; 

 A Section 73 amendment to vary the existing planning permission has been submitted in 

April 2021 and is awaiting determination by FoDDC; 

 Until planning and funding is in place, no further action for GCC.  

 

4.8 Local Plans / JCS / CIL 
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which ended 

in January 2019; 

 The JCS Reg.18 consultation is anticipated in Autumn 2021; 

 Progress has been made with the JCS authorities to review the JCS CIL – consultants have 

now been appointed to undertake this task; 

 GCC education and library contributions continue to be challenged and declined by some 

District Councils and developers – these are in the process of being reviewed by GCC; 

 GCC continues to not receive a penny of CIL from any of the JCS authorities; 

Page 73



 

 

 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Significant officer-level concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the 

significant proposed development at Sharpness. Another SDC consultation took place with 

additional possible housing sites, which was responded to in December 2020. The most 

recent public consultation stage (pre-submission draft consultation) ended on 21st July 

2021. GCC officer comments were submitted prior to the deadline. 

 Cotswold Local Plan – Adopted in August 2018; 

 Forest of Dean Local Plan – Issues and Options consultation ended on 31st October 2019. 

FoDDC consulted on a ‘preferred option’ – the closing date for comments was 29th January 

2021. GCC officers commented before this deadline.  

 

5.0 Libraries & Registration 
 
5.1 Libraries 

 Library opening hours are almost all back to their pre-pandemic patterns.  There are a 

handful of libraries that are still not able to open their full hours due to recruitment to 

vacancies. 

 The Summer Reading challenge launched on 10th July 2021 – the theme this year is Wild 

World Heroes with the Reading Agency partnering with the World Wildlife Fund – this year 

has an emphasis on wildlife and protecting the environment. 

 Two expressions of interest have been submitted to the Libraries Improvement Fund – part 

of the Government’s levelling up fund.  One of the projects based around provision in 

Oakley, Cheltenham has been invited to submit a full bid with a closing date of 23rd 

September 2021. 

 

5.2 Registration  
 Ceremonies are extremely busy – wedding and civil partnership ceremonies that were 

performed in July were up by 53% on our last full year in 2019/20. 

 Due to the ongoing works in Shire Hall we urgently need to find an alternative location for 

the delivery of citizenship ceremonies.  Prior to the pandemic these were held in the 

Coroner’s Court but the Coroner has advised that we cannot use this facility for the 

foreseeable future. 

 
6.0 Waste Management  
 

 Waiting times for an appointment to visit a Household Recycling Centre (HRC) by car 

remain low. Next day appointments are currently available at four of the sites (as of 

16.40pm, 4th August). There is a two day wait at Pyke Quarry. 

 Customer Surveys have been completed at the HRCs during July to monitor customer 

satisfaction with the booking system, site staff and the facilities. A report will be available in 

August. 

 The new contract for the management of the HRC service with Ubico comes in to effect on 

7th August, with the team working with Legal Services colleagues to complete the contract. 

 Work continues on the procurement of new materials off-take contracts for the various 

waste streams collected for reuse, recycling and recovery at the HRCs. There are currently 

28 different contracts in place, which are to be retendered and awarded ahead of contract 

commencement on 1st April 2022. The duration of these new contracts will be synchronised 

with the duration of the new Ubico management contract. 

Page 74



 

 

 Preparation continues for the annual two-week maintenance outage at the Gloucestershire 

Energy from Waste facility. The outage is scheduled to commence on 30th August. Covid 

safe working practices will be used (regardless of the prevailing national advice).  

 The visitor and education centre at the Energy from Waste facility, which has remained 

closed throughout the pandemic, has now reopened.  

 A soft marketing testing exercise was completed in July with potential providers for the sale 

of electricity generated by the Energy from Waste Facility. This service is currently provided 

by EDF, which is under contract with the council until 2023. The work will be coordinated 

with the procurement of an energy buying service for the council (which is currently 

provided by WME). Discussions focussed on the optimum length of the contract, providers 

willingness to take on the risk on the volume of electricity generated by the plant (the 

council bears the price risk) and how future developments such as a heat off-take 

arrangement with a neighbour to the plant might be accommodated. 

 A contract has been agreed with Cheltenham B.C to allow them to deliver waste from their 

trade waste rounds to the Energy from Waste Facility. The waste is currently landfilled. The 

contract offers CBC a saving over its current landfill arrangements and provides full cost 

recovery for GCC.  

 

7.0 Employment and Skills  
 

7.1  Adult Education Service 

 Since the implementation of the new staffing structure (commenced 1st September), good 

progress is being made with staff being embedded into new roles. The transition from old to 

new is progressing very well despite Covid-19 related challenges. An internal full review of 

our current processes and procedures is still underway to enable the Service to continue 

making improvements (streamlining, efficiency gains and cost savings). Full impact of the 

changes will not be shown from a working point of view until full service is up and running 

post Covid restrictions but so far staff are embracing the process well.  

 Staff Questionnaire was been sent out to all AES staff to ascertain how they felt about 

returning to work post Covid restrictions and with a view to continuing AGILE working.  

Majority of staff are keen to return to 3 days a week in the office and 2 days a week working 

from home.  This will work well for the provision provided there is enough desk space in the 

office to allow for this post Covid.  Discussions will take place with the team over the 

coming weeks to work out how the GCC Agile Working changes will fit around our service 

delivery. 

 It is likely that longer-term the Service will retain more of a blended learning approach 

combining online and face-to-face learning, although this remains challenging with 

Community learning, we continued through the second and third lockdowns to provide face 

to face learning to those most vulnerable and facing digital poverty, which has seen all 

classes at capacity with 6 learners (socially distanced). The third lockdown led to 80% of 

our provision moving online, with only 20% of courses taking place face to face to support 

those who are facing extreme vulnerability with digital skills and mental health/wellbeing. 

 Full process review is being undertaken by the new HoS to standardise procedures across 

the department, this includes new observation, enrolment and course development 

procedures and processes to allow for better Ofsted and Matrix readiness. 

 Our current subcontractor framework is due to end with our 5 current subcontractors on 

July 31st 2021, and we would now like to go out to tender again (new ESFA 21/22 

allocation, has been announced and detailed below).  Documents have been submitted for 

Page 75



 

 

Cabinet review at the June meeting to ensure that this process is completed by the 

deadline and service is not disrupted. 

 ESFA funding allocation has been announced for 21/22 as follows: 

 

o Total £2,616,429 grant 1 – August 21 – March 22 - £1,639,193, grant 2 – April 22 – July 

22 - £977,236 

 

o Distribution of grant as follows: 

 Adult Skills Allocation - £536,481 

 Community Learning Allocation - £2,064,048 

 National Skills Fund (Level 3 offer over 24yr) - £15,900 

 

o Advanced Learner Loans for 2021-2022 
 Total - £20,128 (August 21-March 22 - £12,715, April 22- July 22 - £7,413) 

 
o Planned Community Learning Allocation (total £2,064,048) 

 Subcontractors - £499,999 
 Direct Delivery - £1,564,049 

 

- REPORT END -  

Page 76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Future of the High Street
	HAZ Pres Sept 21

	5 GFirst LEP Item
	7 Gloucestershire Covid-19 Economic Recovery Planning
	8 Work Plan
	9 Executive Director's Report

